Table of Contents

What is NUTV?	2
NUTV Welcomes All New Members	
How To Get Involved	
New Members	4
Production & Programming	6
Full Frontal NUTV	
Campus Community Television (CCT)	
Podcasts	
Independent Productions	
Documentary School	
Associate Producers	Q
Equipment	
Administration & Operations	
Volunteer Membership	
Executive Committee	
Board of Directors	
NUTV Staff	40
Executive Director	
Producer/Program DirectorTechnical/TrainingDirector	
Publicity and Promotions Director	
rubilcity and Fromotions Difector	14
Operations Policy	14
Disciplinary Procedures	
Dubbing Station Rules	
Copying, Transferring, Dubbing Footage	23
Procedure & Protocol	
Safewalk (FREE) Service & NUTV Contact Information	25

What is NUTV?

NUTV (The New University Television Society) is one of the oldest university based television production societies in Canada. Our primary purpose is *two* fold: to provide The University of Calgary students and other members of the community with an opportunity to participate in television production *and* to produce quality programming that will be of interest to the students of the University. We offer an invaluable opportunity to our membership: the chance to explore the medium of television by learning the various stages of production. This includes reporting/interviewing, writing, camera operation, editing, producing and directing.

The majority of our programming is produced by the membership with staff giving guidance for quality and content.

NUTV encourages a forum for a free exchange of ideas and opinions and provides a voice to individuals and groups who otherwise would not have one in the main-stream media.

NUTV has two main branches of programming: Full Frontal and CCT (Campus Community Television). Full Frontal is a half hour magazine program which is broadcast on Shaw: 6pm, every Saturday on channel 89 [Shaw Multicultural / Civic]

9am, every Sunday & 2am every Friday on channel 10 [Shaw TV "Culture Scene"] (channel and times subject to change).

CCT, a series of closed circuit monitors located in the MacEwan Student Center, showcases a wide variety of live and special events programming that is produced and/or acquired to play on our campus based system of monitors.

NUTV Welcomes All New Members

Most new members of NUTV have little or no experience in television production. Since The University of Calgary does not offer television/film/video production courses, or the study of journalism, NUTV performs an important service for The University of Calgary as it provides an experiential learning environment to foster and address student and campus community needs.

The great thing about NUTV is that everyone who joins the organization has an equal opportunity to learn and to participate not only in terms of production but also in terms of assisting with the development and growth of the Society.

At NUTV members receive a chance to collaborate with others on projects, to share experiences, and to explore their own creativity through the medium of television.

How to Get Involved

New Members

The first step in becoming a NUTV member is to visit our offices at 315 MacEwan Hall (across from the MacHall ballroom). One of our staff members will be happy to provide you with an orientation to NUTV including information pertaining to our mandate, our programming and finally, a suggested procedure for getting involved with production, closed circuit or the organizational side of the Society. Once you are clear on what we are all about the next step is to fill out our application form and pay the membership fee.

One of the objectives of NUTV's staff is to involve new members as soon as possible. The best way to get involved is to attend production/story meetings! Meeting times are posted in the office and emailed via membership bulletins.

Production meetings are the best place to meet other members, find out what is going on, and most importantly, volunteer as a Production Assistant (PA). PAs do a variety of tasks including carrying equipment, taking still photographs, making sure all equipment is accounted for, and acquiring public consent forms (when necessary). In addition, new volunteers may perform important organizational tasks such as: hanging posters, databasing archival material, and promotional work (e.g., volunteering at our info booth during U of C 101 and various campus and Calgary events). As a PA you familiarize your self with NUTV's multifaceted areas of production and observe what is involved in reporting, directing, camera operating, or editing.

To become an NUTV editor, reporter, or camera operator you need to complete the required training in that area. To be eligible to receive training you need two Production Assistant credits. You can obtain both by attending any two *Full Frontal* shoots, or split them up between Production on *Full Frontal* and NUTV Publicity or Promotion.

Once you have completed your Production Assistant credits, you can get trained on Camera or in Editing. You should contact the NUTV Technical Director to schedule a training session.

If you want to get trained as a **reporter** you should ask the Associate Producer when the next reporter workshop is. **All NUTV** reporters are required to take this workshop before stories can be pitched at production meetings.

4

On occasion, NUTV provides special workshops addressing other aspects of production. Look for postings in our bulletins or on the notice board in the office. New members can also request an orientation on our digital still camera. Still shots are an excellent resource for promotional purposes. If this interests you, talk to the Technical Director to get a quick half-hour orientation on how to use this camera.

New members may also get involved in an organizational capacity. Volunteers are always needed to assist with NUTV's special events: working on the newsletter, marketing NUTV on campus, designing posters, and public relations activities. Please let the Executive Director or a member of the Executive Committee know of your interest in these areas, and request permission prior to speaking publicly on behalf of NUTV.

At NUTV, you will receive an opportunity to learn about the medium of television. How does it work? How are programs and stories put together? Who and what are the creative forces behind each production? Through our various orientation and workshop sessions, NUTV members will learn about camera operation, editing, producing and directing. It is up to YOU to make the commitment to learn, and then develop your production skills. NUTV provides the professional guidance and equipment, helping whenever possible, but the energy and commitment must come from the individual volunteer.

Production & Programming

NUTV programming adheres to all CRTC Regulations, all other applicable broadcasting regulations and practice, and abides by the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms in all actions.

Full Frontal NUTV

Our flagship magazine program, *Full Frontal*, is regularly broadcast on Shaw Cable 89 and 10 (subject to change) and is available 24/7 on our website (www.nutv.ca). The main target audience for Full Frontal is the students of the University of Calgary. There are three main segments to the show: **news**, **arts**, and **sports**. An Associate Producer is assigned to coordinate each segment of this program, and meetings are held each week to discuss story ideas, reporting and the crew. Stories are mainly campus based, but we also cover community events that we feel are of interest to University students. Each segment of the show has structured regular features; the Associate Producers and the talent overseeing these features determine the content and format.

Members newly trained in a reporter workshop, will be assigned two stories to begin with (one only per show). Once those two assigned stories are done (and approved by the AP and/or Producer/Program Director), reporters are then invited to pitch their own unique ideas. The Associate Producer determines the appropriateness and viability of each 'pitch' for the show. Members should be open to having their ideas reformatted to fit the feel of the show. By maintaining a specific show format NUTV hopes to achieve the goal of offering its members the opportunity to learn about television production and at the same time produce a quality show for the students of the University of Calgary.

Campus Community Television (CCT)

Campus Community TV – NUTV's closed circuit campus based broadcast system on Channel 17

Working with NUTV's Publicity and Promotions Director members can contribute to promoting NUTV's *Campus Community TV* programming by keeping Channel 17 tuned to the changing nature of contemporary Calgary campus life.

Today's students want to be current and aware. NUTV offers U of C students a new and exciting way to address these desires.

NUTV Campus Community TV offers members:

- Opportunities to showcase independent film, documentary, video or art.
- Participate in building and maintaining a broadcast schedule.
- Broadcast "Live to Air" events such as: U of C Dino games, lecture series, the SU elections and debates, concerts and more!
- Assist in promoting awareness of NUTV on campus, U of C campus events as well as events that may be happening off campus.
- Produce public service notifications and design ads to promote campus and community events.
- Participate in advertiser sponsored and/or promotional events.
- Opportunities to liaise and outreach to U of C residence students.
- Network with community organizations to increase awareness and visibility on campus.

Members with computer graphics experience are encouraged to volunteer in this area.

Podcasts

Over the past year, NUTV has begun to focus more and more on web broadcasting, both live and archived. Due to the success of this initiative we will be developing podcast style shows to be produced by small teams for experienced volunteers. Any web-based shows will be developed with members and approved by the Producer/Program Director.

NUTV Live! is the official title for NUTV's live web streams of Dinos Athletics, film festival or political panel discussions, and musical performances.

Independents

On rare occasions, NUTV offers independent productions to members who have contributed above and beyond normal volunteer expectations. Guidelines for independent projects are listed in the operations policy section. NUTV considers the production of independent projects to be a privilege, not a right.

Documentary School

NUTV runs a special workshop series called, *Documentary School*. Members have opportunity to develop a documentary short film subject from proposal to screen, with help from industry professionals including veteran documentary filmmakers, the National Film Board of Canada and the CBC.

Candidates must submit an application and meet qualifications stipulated in the Operations Policy (clause 9). Deadline dates for each program will be announced in bulletins to our members.

Associate Producers

Each biweekly produced *Full Frontal* is comprised of four thematic sections: News, Arts, Sports and Human Interest stories. All content is produced for broadcast on Campus Community Television (CCT), as well as Shaw Cablesystems Calgary, and www.nutv.ca.

Each section at NUTV is supervised by an Associate Producer (AP), with *NUTV Live!* events managed by the Associate Producer of *NUTV Live!* and/or the Technical/Training Director.

AP positions are held by members proficient in production. Each Associate Producer holds regular meetings for their section and is responsible to the Producer/Program Director. The Associate Producers are responsible for ensuring their section is ready to go 'on air' on time and that high production values are maintained. The Associate Producers update and keep the Producer informed at all times. Before any content airs on *Full Frontal* or *Campus Community Television (CCT)* it must have approval of an Associate Producer. Even after material has received the approval of the Associate Producer, the Producer may still decide that the material is inappropriate for broadcast. The ultimate decision as to whether something is broadcast lies with the Producer/Program Director.

Equipment

NUTV offers all members professional training sessions throughout the year. This includes orientation for all of NUTV's production and post-production equipment.

NUTV is extremely fortunate to have industry standard equipment. NUTV has two DVCAM cameras, a SONY XD-CAM (HD camera) and two Sony EX1 prosumer HD cameras. NUTV has an assortment of professional post-production equipment. We have two Final Cut Pro edit suites and a multimedia edit system with which members can create graphics and animation for usage in their videos.

To operate NUTV's cameras and edit systems members must be proficient on that piece of equipment. Proficiency is defined within the Operation Policies.

It is imperative that all NUTV members handle the equipment with the utmost care, respect and professionalism at all times.

Administration & Operations

NUTV has been incorporated as a registered non-profit society since 1991. Our primary purpose is to provide The University of Calgary undergraduate students and other members of the community the opportunity to participate in television production under the guidance of a qualified staff.

The structure of NUTV is comprised of a Board of Directors, four staff members, an Executive Committee made up of active members, four Associate Producers, and our invaluable

volunteer membership. All are responsible for the successful running and operation of the Society.

The majority of NUTV's budget comes from a levy paid by full-time undergraduate students of The University of Calgary. Consequently, our commitment is to The University of Calgary first, and to the community at large, second.

Volunteer Membership

The majority of the volunteer membership at NUTV consists of The University of Calgary undergraduate students, however NUTV also welcomes members from the community at large.

NUTV's office and production facilities are located in 315 MacEwan Hall, which is connected to the MacEwan Student Centre. NUTV is in an ideal location to recruit and to accommodate students who are interested in television production.

Each volunteer member may be involved with production, broadcast or in an organizational capacity, or often a combination of all three. The success and survival of the organization is contingent upon the volunteer members and their shared commitment towards the goals and aspirations of the Society.

Membership fees are paid annually and expire after one year:

\$10.00 - University of Calgary full-time undergraduate students

\$15.00 - NUTV alumni

\$30.00 - community members (this also includes U of C graduate students, part-time students)

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee (E.C.) is made up of three elected members from the Society. These elected members work as a team and have an extremely important role within NUTV matters and operations. The E.C. is comprised of a Chairperson, Special Events Coordinator and a Volunteer Coordinator.

Some of the E.C.'s responsibilities include the approval of all NUTV policy and bylaw amendments, which are then forwarded to the Board of Directors for final approval; to solicit Board of Director candidates, to provide recommendations regarding NUTV Human Resources, to approve emergency capital expenditures, to assist with the production of a NUTV newsletter and to assist with marketing, public relations and volunteer recognition events.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the advising body of the NUTV and the Board's main areas of responsibilities are financial, human resources (staff), maintaining adherence to all CRTC regulations, NUTV by-laws and policies, helping direct NUTV, and advising on long and short-term goals. The Board is representative of a wide cross section of the University and outside community, including one member of the Calgary arts/media community, one member of Calgary community/public television, one member of the University of Calgary faculty or staff, the General Manager of The Students' Union, one Students' Union Executive, a NUTV Executive Committee representative, two elected representatives from the NUTV membership, and the Executive Director of NUTV.

The NUTV representatives are elected annually. The media

or faculty members are appointed to the board for a maximum term of three years. The Executive Director and The Students' Union General Manager both sit on the board as part of their job. All board members are voting except for the latter two, who are both non-voting.

Minutes from all NUTV Board meetings, as well as Executive Committee meetings are kept in binders in the NUTV offices. All NUTV members are welcome to read the minutes.

NUTV Staff

Executive Director

The Executive Director is the Station Manager, responsible for all budget matters, overall operations of the organization, supervision of staff, public relations, special projects, and works with the Board of Directors and Executive Committee to direct the Society. The Executive Director is responsible for adherence to CRTC regulations (when applicable) and programming standards.

Producer/Program Director

The Producer oversees and coordinates all production of all programs that go to air. The Producer supervises and coordinates the Associate Producers and works closely with the volunteer membership. The Producer also works with the Technical Director to schedule and develop training programs and workshops. The Producer ensures adherence to CRTC regulations (when applicable) and is responsible for all programming standards. The Producer/Program Director corresponds with the local community channel to provide required information and ensures that our programs air as scheduled.

Technical/Training Director

The Technical Director/Training Director develops and maintains the orientation sessions and training workshops for all members to learn proper camera, lighting, audio and editing techniques. The Technical Director provides support, supervision and advises on productions when necessary. Administratively, the Technical Director develops and maintains technical manuals, equipment inventory, technical handouts, and all forms and procedures for equipment use.

Publicity & Promotions Director

The Publicity and Promotions Director manages the broadcast schedule of NUTV's Campus Community Television station and helps plan and execute both campus and community outreach initiatives. The position ensures NUTV can fulfill its mandate of providing access to television, ensuring communities are aware of our services. Some examples include outreach to student residence, liaising with campus clubs and community organizations, advertising sales and volunteer supervision at recruitment directed events.

Operations Policy

- A 'Society Member in Good Standing' is a member whose membership fees are paid to date and who has been following NUTV protocols to the point at which the member's status is being assessed. This status is to be determined from input by the Program Director and Technical Director.
- 2. A 'Producing Member' is a Reporter, Director, Camera Operator, Editor, or Production Assistant on work created for Full Frontal, Closed Circuit, a podcast or a NUTV project assigned by the Producer/Program Director within the two month period prior to the point at which the member's

- status is being assessed.
- 3. To be eligible for training or to attend workshops a member needs to meet all of the following criteria: 1) They must be a 'Member in Good Standing'. 2) The member needs to have at least two Production Assistant credits obtained by assisting with Full Frontal Production and a volunteer assignment such as postering, ushering special screenings, or assisting at recruitment drives or related NUTV marketing.
- 4. A member is considered 'Proficient' on a piece of equipment once they have been trained on the operation of that piece of equipment by the Technical Director and demonstrates a level of competence in the operation of that piece of equipment that meets the standard set by the Technical Director. Only 'Proficient' members can operate equipment. To 'maintain proficiency' the member has to have used that piece of equipment to create work for either *Full Frontal, CCT,* podcast, or a project assigned by the Producer/Program Director within the six-month period prior to the point at which the member's status is being assessed.
- 5. To be proficient in reporting means that the member has completed the reporter workshop. To 'maintain proficiency' the member has to have reported on work for either Full Frontal, CCT, podcast, or a project assigned by the Producer/Program Director within the six-month period prior to the point at which the member's status is being assessed. For the purpose of members maintaining proficiency in this area 'directing' dramas, documentaries, experimental pieces or other work assigned by the Producer/Program Director will be considered the equivalent of reporting.
- Talent, who are non NUTV members, are allowed to host features or report on stories at the discretion of the Producer/Program Director.
- 7. The camera operator is responsible for signing out, han-

- dling and the safe return of all equipment. Equipment can only be booked overnight with the direct permission of the Technical Director. Members who reserve equipment and do not show up within the scheduled time (without prior notice) will lose the booking. Bookings should be only for the time required to do the production. **Do not over book equipment.** Overbooking equipment is hard on all other members. Independent Productions and School projects must recognize the priority of NUTV productions when booking equipment. All equipment is reserved via our on-line booking system.
- 8. No programs are to be installed on the computers in the edit suite. This also includes fonts, plug-ins, and the importation of outside material. If a member has an image file such as an animation made on a home computer or a sound composition they wish to incorporate with a story they must get assistance from the Technical Director.
- 9. To be eligible for Documentary School a member must be proficient in camera, editing and reporting at the point that the application is submitted. In addition the candidate must clearly demonstrate that they will have achieved the status of a Producing Member prior to the onset of the school program. If not enough eligible members are available for a program, the program will be rescheduled for a later date, or cancelled.
- 10. Independent Projects are defined as: Any dramas, documentaries, experimental pieces, or other work that is outside the scope of normal programming for Full Frontal or Closed Circuit. The maximum length for most NUTV approved independents is 9.5 minutes or less. The final length of the piece will be assigned by the Producer/Program Director upon approval. Length restrictions must be adhered to in order for NUTV to broadcast the work. NUTV is under no obligation to broadcast or otherwise exhibit independent projects.
- 11. All Independent projects must be approved by the Pro-

16

- ducer/Program Director, on a case-by-case basis. There is no guarantee NUTV can accommodate an independent production. Independent productions receive lowest priority with respect to equipment access against all other production at NUTV.
- 12. To be eligible to make an Independent work, the member must be a Producing Member at the point of the application. The positions of Director, Camera Operator, and Editor, must be assumed by members proficient in those areas. To be the director of the piece the member must be proficient in reporting. To be the camera operator for the piece the member must be proficient in camera operation. To be the editor of the piece the member must be a proficient editor. All of these positions must be filled by members willing to commit to the completion of the project at the point of application. If any member of the production team drops out of the project the Program Director needs to be informed immediately. The Program Director will then decide an appropriate course of action at that point. If a replacement cannot be found within an appropriate amount of time the project will be cancelled.
- 13. Any extra learning or assistance or special equipment (such as wireless mics, boom mics, lights, training in After Effects, Photoshop, Illustrator, etc.) required to make the Independent should be determined prior to approval of the project. If special learning or equipment is required then the approval of the Technical Director should be obtained.
- 14. Each Independent application will be given a start and finish date by the Producer/Program Director. You will be allowed one extension. Extensions are done at the discretion of the Producer program director. If deadlines are not met the following may happen: NUTV will take over the project and either terminate or complete it.
- 15. Each Independent will be assigned edit time and drive space by the Technical Director.

- 16. NUTV retains sole copyright of all work produced at its facilities. This means, for example, they have no rights to upload footage (complete stories or otherwise) to the web, such as YouTube. Exceptions on copyright ownership are generally not granted. Only when work requires additional outside funding, and this funding requires copyright ownership by the creator of the production would an exception be granted. The member must provide proof that outside funding was applied for. Once confirmation of outside funding is received, NUTV will relinquish copyright to the member and take a 'Produced in Association with NUTV' head credit which must be embedded over picture in the head credit sequence of the Independent work. The member must ensure that NUTV's head credit will not be deleted or edited out of the piece by the director and/or any third party. If NUTV's credit cannot be guaranteed, then NUTV must be given a shared copyright credit in the tail credits with the filmmaker (i.e., © - MEMBER PRODUCTION COMPANY & NEW UNIVERSITY TELEVISION SOCIETY - DATE).
- 17. Negligence will be dealt with according to NUTV's disciplinary guidelines. Repeated negligence will result in access privileges being revoked and possible suspension or expulsion as per NUTV's Society By-laws. See Disciplinary Procedures section below.
- 18. Members in good standing can obtain access to equipment for the purpose of compiling a portfolio of their NUTV work. Requests to produce a personal reel need to be made to the Producer/Program Director and will be scheduled in at a time that does not interfere with NUTV's regular productions. (Please review the Dubbing station Rules)
- 19. The making and/or selling of any NUTV video production and/or any video footage for personal gain/interest without the approval of the Producer/Program Director is strictly prohibited.

18

- 20. Production for commercial purposes is strictly prohibited.
- 21. MEDIA PROTOCOL: The official spokesperson for NUTV is the Executive Director. The Executive Director may delegate this authority to any other staff member or volunteer as appropriate. Staff and volunteers may not respond to the media without the prior approval of the Executive Director. All communiqués (i.e. press releases, etc.) must be approved by the Executive Director before release.
- 22. No equipment rentals are done at NUTV as it conflicts with the Society's mandate.
- 23. All productions produced by NUTV are intended for broadcast.
- 24. All NUTV production crew MUST be members in good standing, with the exception of talent that has been approved by the NUTV Producer/Program Director.
- 25. The Producer must approve all NUTV productions through proper channels and procedures as set out.
- 26. If a production fails to make its deadline, or is in breach of NUTV by-laws, the Producer reserves the right to halt, and/or cancel the production.
- 27. NUTV reserves the right to change these policies at any time.

Disciplinary Procedures

NUTV will not tolerate members who do not follow NUTV Policies and Protocols. Staff will discuss infractions with the member to determine the cause of the infraction. In the case of negligence or repeated infractions a verbal warning will be issued. If a society member, having received a verbal warning commits another infraction (of any policy, procedure, or protocol) they will then receive a written warning. If a society member with a written warning on his/her file commits another infraction (of any policy, procedure, or protocol) they will be suspended and/or expelled with notification in writing.

In certain cases, depending on specifics of infraction, NUTV reserves the right to suspend a volunteer immediately, pending review by NUTV Executive Committee to determine if explusion is warranted.

If a society member who has previously been suspended commits another infraction (of any policy, procedure, or protocol) then at that point their membership may be terminated automatically after consultation with the Executive Committee and the member will be notified in writing. Expelled or suspended members may appeal the decision to the Board of Directors within fifteen (15) days from the date the notice was issued.

NUTV staff reserve the right to immediately suspend a member for gross negligence.

Dubbing Station Rules

Access to the NUTV dubbing station is a privilege to members. The standard dubbing station set up will be the DSR 11 DV CAM deck straight into the TV. This is so volunteers can review DV CAM footage. The only people that can rewire the dubbing station are the Technical Director, the Producer Program Director, the Executive Director, the Publicity and Promotions Director, and any one who has been given 'specific permission' to do so. 'Specific permission' can only be given by the Technical Director. Anyone rewiring the dubbing station is responsible for making sure the station is returned to the standard set up when they have completed their session.

Requests to use the dubbing station need to be made to the Producer or the Technical Director. The dubbing station is booked on-line. Bookings will be made on a first come first serve basis guided by the following priorities.

NOTE: If you have booked the dubbing station and something of higher priority comes up, you may be asked to reschedule your booking. If you are making a personal dub or dubs for festival entry, be prepared for the possibility of losing your booking time.

First in priority is using the station to review footage shot for NUTV's Full Frontal magazine show, Closed Circuit Television, or training purposes. This includes doing in house paper edits.

Second in priority is the transfer of material so it can be used for Full Frontal or Closed Circuit television. This category includes the usage of dubbing station equipment for doing production work such as Live to Tape productions for Closed Circuit Television. This also includes reviewing footage shot for training purposes.

Third in priority is dubbing raw footage with time code burn to do paper edits at home. These dubs require the direct consent of the Producer.

Fourth in priority is members dubbing copies of the show or a story they did for the show. Members are allowed to dub one copy of the show or a story they did for the show. More than one copy requires the specific consent of the Producer Program Director.

Fifth in priority is members dubbing copies of independent work that NUTV owns the rights to. The number of dubs is limited according to the following: one dub for each of the key participants in a doc or drama that is produced by NUTV; two personal dubs for the director; one dub for each film festival that the film is being submitted to provided that proof of entry into the festival can be demonstrated (Note: if you are entering a festival remember that these dubs are fifth in priority and the priority is not going to be changed

because someone wasn't aware of a deadline for a festival); as many dubs as required for a grant application (usually no more than two). If more dubs than the above are required then it will have to be done outside of this agency unless the Producer Program Director gives specific consent otherwise.

Sixth in priority is members dubbing copies of personal projects that they own. This requires the permission of the Producer Program Director. The number of dubs is limited by the same criteria as limits the number of dubs volunteers can make of independent work that NUTV owns the rights to.

Seventh in priority is dubs made by staff members of personal projects.

Eighth in priority are dubs made for outside agencies.

Last in priority is the usage of dubbing station equipment, such as the Betacam Deck, for outside film festivals. However, even though these are last in priority, permission for these bookings are given well in advance and once permission is given the booking is given priority over anything except tasks directly related to Full Frontal or Closed Circuit production that cannot be rescheduled.

Note: NUTV's production cameras are not to be used for making dubs.

22

Copying, Transferring, Dubbing Footage

Final Cut Edit Suite

Removal of media (audio/video) on devices such as portable hard drives and flash memory sticks is not permitted without approval of the NUTV Producer/Program Director and Technical Director. Final Cut Edit Suites are not to be used for any purpose other than completion of your video edit. For example, do not use the suites for checking email, or browsing the internet.

Burning of CDs and DVDs Requires Permission

Volunteers are only allowed to burn CDs and DVDs with NUTV Producer/Program Director permission.

Procedure & Protocol

- When on an NUTV shoot or in the office, please remember that you are representing NUTV; courtesy and professionalism are crucial at all times.
- Media access is a privelege. Please respect subjects appearing in your production and locations you are videotaping. For example, do not exceed three (3) crew members (camera operator, reporter, PA) on standard ENG shoots. Any abuse of media access will not be tolerated.
- Please answer all phones with "Hello NUTV".
- When taking messages, please ensure the information is clear and well identified. Messages for members should go on the white board located in the studio space.

- Members may access their email and the Internet with the computer located in the volunteer lounge. Staff computers are off limits to all members. NUTV discourages members from printing from the office computers unless it is directly related to production. Final Cut Pro Edit Suite computers are off limits for checking of email or internet browsing or any non-editing related activity.
- NUTV is supportive of the dignity, self-esteem, and contribution of everyone involved in our society. NUTV is committed to providing a work environment free from harassment. Every person at NUTV has the right to participate in an environment free from harassment related to gender, racial origin, religion, marital status, disability, age, ancestry, sexual orientation, citizenship or family status. No such harassment will be tolerated.

In a situation where harassment is alleged to have occurred, volunteers are encouraged first to discuss the situation with an NUTV staff member in confidence. In addition, the Sexual Harassment Office on campus (Math Sciences 261 & 263. Tel: 403-220-4086) is available to deal with all matters of harassment.

- The members lounge room is for all members. Please keep it clean and tidy. Make sure leftover food, drink, etc. are properly disposed.
- After hours usage of NUTV facilities is limited to members with work in production.
- No food or drink in the editing room suites.
- NUTV Society By-laws are available in the offices.
- Parking permits & keys MUST be signed out. Deposits will be taken.

CAMPUS SAFEWALK:

403-220-5333

Please have Campus Safewalk escort you to your vehicle, bus stop or train station.

Twenty-four hours a day and seven days a week Safewalk volunteers walk people to their destination on campus. This service is FREE and available to students, staff and campus visitors.

Safewalks are done in male/female pairs. The volunteers walk anywhere on campus (including McMahon Stadium, Health Sciences, Student Family Housing, the Alberta Children's Hospital and the University LRT train station).

NUTV Contact Information

Executive Director:	403-220-3392
Producer/Program Director:	403-220-6715
Training/Technical Director:	403-220-4132
Publicity and Promotions Director:	403-210-9564
Associate Producer Office:	403-220-8615
NUTV Fax:	403-210-8107